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Incline Village, Nevada - 2/14/2024 - 6:00 P.M. 

-o0o-

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Good evening.  I'd like to
call the meeting to order of the Incline Village
General Improvement District regular meeting at 6:00
p.m. on February 14th, here at the Boardroom, 893
Southwood Boulevard in Incline Village, Nevada.

We will begin with the Pledge of
Allegiance.
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

(Pledge of Allegiance.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  On to the roll

call of trustees.
B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tonking?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Here.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Here.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Dent?
TRUSTEE DENT:  Here.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Noble?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Here.  
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And Trustee Schmitz, here.
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We have a quorum.  We will then move on to initial
public comments.  We'll start with the public
comments here in the room and then move to the Zoom.
C.  INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

MS. USINGER:  Caroline Usinger, 582
Jackpine.

I've been thinking about 2024 compared to
2023, and I always hope that the world gets a little
bit better every year.  This year, I'm not too sure.

$350,000 spent on an unwarranted audit.
$50,000 to find a new general manager, only for
their findings to be thrown out.  $350,000 to have
people not work.  $800,000 for consultants and
attorneys.  Destroying long-term, strong financials
by switching from community-based recreation funding
to individual venue fee-based services.  No
improvements for tennis center, no improvements for
golf, no improvements for Diamond Peak, no
improvements for beaches, no improvements to the Rec
Center.  Demotivating the entire IVGID staff.  No
dog park.  The reserve fund wiped out.  Saying no to
a $25 million donation.  

I am left to wonder whether this is
incompetence or a planned effort to destroy IVGID.

So I'm going to go back again:  $350,000
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for an unwarranted audit.  $50,000 to find a general
manager and then not use their proposals.  $350,000
to have people not work.  $800,000 for consultants
and attorneys.  Destroying long-term, strong
financials by switching from community-based
recreation funding to individual venue fee-based
services.  The reserve fund wiped out.  Is this
incompetence or a planned effort to destroy IVGID?  

I fear terribly for the year 2024 that
this list will just be added to.  And what can I
say?  Is this incompetence or a planned effort to
destroy IVGID?  We're watching and we will vote you
out.

MR. CARS:  Bill Cars, full-time resident.
Good evening, Trustees and fellow residents.

During the January 31st meeting, the IVGID
board of directors sanctioned an allocation of
another $7,900 for the utilization of FlashVote, a
survey service to administer six surveys across the
Incline Village and Crystal Bay community.  

The decision to commission a series of
surveys raises inquires regarding the specific
objectives sought by the Board and the IVGID staff
particularly, given the substantial history of a
previous community surveys.  
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The questions have emerged regarding the

four and/or slanted survey questions, also the
utilization of data accumulated from prior surveys
and the translation of the results into actionable
measures for community enhancement.  With the
Board-slated commitment to prudent financial
stewardship, some stakeholders have expressed
reservations about the process leading to this
expenditure.  Suggestions have been made for a more
methodical approach, involving collaboration between
the staff and the trustees to ascertain the precise
data requirements and also to determine the optimal
number of surveys needed and select the most
appropriate survey tool.

In addition, the District needs to ensure
that the survey is sent to all residents and/or
property owners, and not just a small,
non-representative sampling composed of FlashVote
enrollees.  And while FlashVote has been chosen to
conduct the surveys, alternative options were not
thoroughly explored or at least presented.

You have spent a lot of money on this
service and what additional data do you need that
requires this budgeted item?  Surely, you already
have enough to get you through the next year or two
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   8
of decision-making.

Thank you.
MS. WELLS:  Kristie Wells, Incline Village

resident.  Good evening, Board.
Item F 5 on the agenda tonight is a

$50,000 request for a contract to McDonald Carano
for a review of client policies on restricted access
beaches in Incline Village and IVGID beaches.
Trustee Schmitz has not provided in the board packet
any indication of what questions need to be answered
that requires us to spend another $50,000.  

We doubt that you're actively working to
find a way to give employees access to the IVGID
beaches again, so what exactly are you asking this
law firm to review?  The community needs to know
what your intentions are well in advance of this
item showing up on an agenda.  

Speaking of McDonald Carano, it appears
there's a potential conflict of interest here, as
Joshua Hicks, the attorney representing the firm in
this engagement, was retained by both Trustee Sara
Schmitz and Matthew Dent to represent them,
personally, in their attempts to block the recall
efforts just about six months ago.  Documents
supporting this statement will be attached to my
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comments, submitted to the clerk.  

This $50,000 could easily be seen as
reward or a quid pro quo for Mr. Hicks' support of
you both in the recall efforts.  Which is a reminder
to the community it's still active and remains in
review by the Secretary of State.  

You don't think this community's paying
attention, but we are.  And you need to confirm that
neither this firm nor Mr. Hicks is representing
either one of you currently for interests related to
the recall campaign.

Moving to item G 1, one of your
recommendations is to develop a two-year contract
that appoints Bobby Magee as the general manager.  A
two-year agreement for someone who has finance
experience but has never managed a district before,
how is this even an option?  If you really believe
in Bobby's ability -- he's an amazing finance guy as
I understand it -- why not start with a ten-month
agreement through the end of this year and make sure
he can actually do this job?  

Not to mention, Bobby doesn't even live in
this district full time, as best as I understand it,
nor does he live in Washoe County.  Not sure how
he's going to be responsive to a 24/7, 365-day
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  10
emergency management protocol that you were so clear
in making sure was set in your contract review a
couple of weeks ago.  

This board is going to look quite
different come January, and you would be committing
this district to a path that the future board will
not be willing to tread.  I highly suggest you
reconsider these contract terms if this is the path
that you're choosing.  

So, this evening I'm going to ask the
Board three things:  Be open and transparent about
why you want more legal work for Ordinance 7.  Be
open and transparent about your relationship with
Mr. Hicks and his firm.  And don't make a long-term
commitment to an unproven general manager.

Thank you.
MS. CARS:  Linda Cars, Incline Village

resident.  Good evening, Board.
I have done a financial summary of the

funds spent for the past calendar year, and I was
shocked that it totaled over $1.8 million.  $1.8
million.  Even more so that only $74,500 was spent
on an unnecessary capital improvement called, quote,
Beach Gate Access.  

Taking the remaining monies, the District
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has spent over $900,000 on personnel costs, which
weren't budgeted, and this includes payments to
employees for severance arrangement and a paid leave
of absence.  This leaves approximately $800,000 in
consultant fees.  

The Board majority, Schmitz, Dent, and
Tulloch, along with the interim Director of Finance
have appeared to have engaged in gross, gross
mismanagement of IVGID resources by allocating funds
towards various expenditures such as FlashVote
surveys, investigations, consultant fees without
tangible results for the community members.  This is
a huge, huge, huge problem.

Why did they spend 1.8 million this year?
Well, a small amount in comparison to the consulting
expenses, they spent over $30,000 for FlashVote and
didn't even use the service to its fullest.  This is
a waste of precious money as the IVGID staff can
reach five to six times more residents with better
focus survey.  

Did you know they are paying for people
not to work?  Susan Herron was paid on leave, still
on leave, Indra Winquest was given severance at a
cost to the community of over $350,000 for both
them, including benefits.  
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Money wasted in the finance area to

investigate fraud and hire consultants like Moss
Adams and RubinBrown.  But, wait, according to the
Nevada Department of Taxation, we were doing fine
with our past five audits.  And by the way, audits
are supposed to find something, and they did, but we
were doing fine.  

What have they accomplished, Schmitz,
Dent, and Tulloch?  Nothing for the facilities and
everything to put IVGID on a path towards
bankruptcy.  

So here we are today watching your $4.5
million budget augmentation due to this
overspending.  We must point out the gross
negligence and ignorance by moving Parks from
community service to the general fund.  This, in
addition the wild, superfluous spending, is another
cause for the budget augmentation.  

It was ludicrous, ludicrous, Sara, to move
Parks, as this action did draw down, unnecessarily,
resources from the general fund.  It should be moved
back to community services immediately.  

In closing, 1.8 million of our money was
spent on their pet projects and not where it should
have been: investing in our facilities and community
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assets.

Thank you.
MR. KATZ:  Good evening.  Aaron Katz,

Incline Village.  I've given several written
statements to be included in the minutes of the
meeting to Heidi.  

I want my public records.  Pages 6 through
7 of the board packet indicate they were provided to
me; they were not.

Rather than going off the deep end when I
saw this in the board packet, I reached out to Heidi
to indicate this fact and again asked for the
records.  I received no response back.  Then I sent
the board members an email on February 13, where I
set forth to truth.  My written statement now has
the documents to back up the truth.

I want the statements directed to my -- if
I don't get them, since it's criminal, I'm going to
file a criminal complaint with the AG tomorrow.  So
I hope you'll give the records.

Business as usual.  The truth to the
public and to the Board is rarely given because our
employees want to protect their own.  Okay.  Let's
talk about some more of these clean employees, and I
gave the Board an opportunity on this one.  Tim

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  14
Buxton is an employee in Public Works.  His job is
to inspect the backflow prevention devices and then
to repair them.  He charges a fee for IVGID to do
it.  

Well, I've discovered he has his own
competing business.  What's the business?  They
inspect backflow prevention devices.  So here you
have an employee competing with his employer, who
should know better, there shouldn't even be a policy
on it, and yet he's allowed to continue.  

When this came to the Audit Committee,
their decision was, oh, well, it's okay for him to
do it because Joe Pomroy told him he could do it.
No, it's not all right.  But it's not just
Mr. Buxton.

Let's go to Tim Kelly in the Rec Center.
He's got another job with the school district where
he uses IVGID time to go work for them.  In fact,
I'm informed he's leaving IVGID, Friday, to go to
West Wendover to represent his other employer to our
detriment.  No, you can't do this during our IVGID
time.  You don't need a policy to know you can't do
this.  

So I want you to take some action, tell
him:  Either work for us or work for your employees,
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but not the two of you.  

I'm against the giveaway of the Rec Center
to Vitalant.  I did a written statement on it.  

Insofar as McDonald Carano, if there is a
potential conflict, please disclose it.

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Seeing no other public

comments in the room, we'll shift to online.
MR. DOBLER:  Cliff Dobler, 995 Fairway.
While I appreciate the efforts of

Mr. Bandelin's GM reports to have each venue manager
provide a report on activities, the reports have
little meaning without reasons for large variances
or conclusions.  

For an example, look at the 2024 estimated
results for facilities and events and focus on
weddings.  During the past three years, weddings
averaged 49 per year, this year only 31 is
projected, a 37 seven percent decline.  Aspen Grove
is worse, with only seven weddings projected, when
the previous three years averaged 17, a 55 percent
decline.  

No discussion on monetary impacts, yet at
the same time, the 2024 budget was to hit revenues
out of the park, but would still have a loss.  The
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2024 revenue budget was 1.9 million, with a loss of
$157,000.  

Weddings are the only profitable venue.
Services for golf, community, corporate, social, and
intercompany are losers when full accounting is
applied.  What will be the actual losses expected in
fiscal 2024?

As an excuse, the memo indicates that
consecutive smoke and unsafe air quality existed in
the summer of 2023.  The statement is untrue.  There
was little smoke last summer.

Bandelin indicates that Diamond Peak has a
new special use permit and has been signed by the
Forest Service, but no indication of any changes
from the previous permit.  Has IVGID assigned it?
The permit requires Board approval.  

The Rec Center comprehensive facilities
maintenance list has been fine-tuned, but to data is
presented.  It has it been completed?  

Aquatics is disturbing that only
three kids participated in the swim team, and only
five kids participated in the youth swim clinic.
Are these programs staffed full time?  What did the
Parks maintenance team do during January?  The memo
indicates some drivers' training and fire alarms
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were done.  How many people are on the staff?  There
is no lawn mowing or irrigation during the winter,
so how do they keep busy?  

Where is the DOWL report on the utility
infrastructure master plan?  The contract is close
to $500,000, was issued 16 months ago, and was due
in November last year.  

The general fund reserve shortage occurred
because of adding the Parks expenses and the
explosion in high-priced, general administrative
expenses.  It can only be cured by increasing the
central service cost billing to recreational venues
and the utilities, expect more rec fees to cover
costs, making less available for capital projects.  

Let's face it, this is been a game of
Chinese checkers.  The devil -- 

(Expiration of three minutes.)
DR. RINER:  Dr. Myles Riner, Incline

Village resident.
Forty-seven minutes into the January 31st

IVGID board meeting, Trustee Schmitz made an
interesting comment when missing the inability to
find more qualified applicants for the general
manager position and to have two who did initially
apply and then backed out.  She out pointed to the
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fact that this is, quote, An opportunity for all of
us to take a look in the mirror because if the
candidate for GM were to Google our community right
now, it doesn't have a very friendly appearance.

I'm not sure you could say that Incline
Village and Crystal Bay don't come across as
friendly, but it is certainly true that a candidate
for GM who does a little digging would easily
discover that the majority of the Board has not been
very friendly to IVGID management and staff.  

Several members of our community, the
angry eight, the perpetually aggrieved, have made
disparaging comments and hurled unfounded
accusations of fraud and malfeasance and
incompetence at IVGID at just about every board
meeting, three IVGID trustees have made and continue
to make life difficult for several IVGID senior
managers, two trustees are facing recall, a forensic
audit witch hunt is underway, and many, many IVGID
staff members and managers have bailed on the
District over the last few years, often citing a
toxic work environment.  If that doesn't give
potential GM candidates pause, perhaps they might
not be the right person for this job.  

The folks that really need to take a good,
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hard look in the mirror are not, quote, all of us in
the community, unquote, but the small number of
citizens who abuse the right to express their
concerns at public meetings, displaying their often
inappropriate and tasteless and occasionally mean
and vile invective at the people who serve on or
behalf and the three trustees who have enabled and
even facilitated this abuse.  

Tim Crowley and I attempted to get these
trustees to adopt a code of conduct policy,
consistent with Nevada Open Meeting Law, which would
allow the Board to curb this abusive, disruptive,
and uncivil behavior at board meetings.  The
suggestion fell of deaf ears, but it should be
revisited.  

Today the Board is considering spending
upwards of $400,000 a year for an underqualified
candidate for GM who, along with these three
trustees, have dug the District into a financial
hole.  

The Nevada Department of Taxation concedes
concerns throughout this mess, and so should we.  As
a result, the majority of this board will saddle us
with a GM the new board in November will likely not
want to have serve for another two years.  
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Look in the mirror, Sara, Matt, and Ray,

and you will see an easily understood explanation
for the struggle to find candidates for the GM
position.  

Thank you.
MS. KNAAK:  Hi.  Yolanda Knaak, full-time

resident here in Incline Village.  
Wow, it sounds like the angry eight is now

the recall people.  It's very disappointing. 
I think that if we do go with the

different head hunter, that the candidates' names
should be withheld from the community after what
happened this last time.

As far as Bobby Magee, I think that there
should be like an evaluation after a few months, and
if need be, have someone that is a consultant -- I
know he's a consultant, but he's more on the
financial piece.  So, have a consultant come in to
work with him.  I think that would be important.  

Also, thank you to the trustees for
FlashVote.  I think it's a great tool, and I
actually like FlashVote.  I think it's important to
hear from the community.

And I just want that say thank you to our
Board.  I think they're doing a great job.  Thank

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 98 of 297



  21
you very much.  Bye.

MS. HUSSONG-JOHNSON:  Good afternoon,
Trustees.  This is Sarah Hussong-Johnson, 785 Mays
Boulevard.  I'm a full-time resident here in
Incline.

I'm compelled to call in tonight, wish I
could be there in person.  But as I reviewed the
latest agenda published on the website, I was
certainly concerned to see the status of our
recruitment for a new general manager here at the
District.  

As I looked into the public comment on
this call, I can certainly understand why we find
ourselves in this situation.  And I call in today as
an extremely concerned resident, with much care and
much pride for our community.

First of all, I would like to thank
Ms. Linda Cars for her articulate comments.  I think
her summary of expenditures does a good job of kind
of highlighting concerns of how money is being spent
in our district right now.  I appreciate her
attention to detail on the expenditures relative to
legal services and consultants versus capital
projects.  

I eagerly look forward to the agenda each

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  22
month with hopes of updates on many of our critical
capital projects that benefit the essential services
that IVGID was formed for, which I think we should
all be reminded as to what those are.  That's clean
drinking water for fire protection -- or clean water
for drinking and fire protection, the collection and
treatment of sewage, and recreation services.  This
is what our district was formed for, and I wish that
this is what we could spend more of our time
focusing on instead of the current business.

As I listened to the other public
comments, I think of the existing staff that is
currently remaining here and dedicated to the
District, our long-term employees that I hear under
attack, and I ask us all to remember the fact that
since our previous general manager separation in
June of 2023, we have also suffered the loss of a
director of public works, a director of finance, a
director of food and beverage, a director of golf, a
director of administrative services that has been on
paid leave since November of 2023.  

I can't even calculate the tenure of these
employees and the loss of institutional knowledge to
the District that they represent.  I know just the
Director of Administrative Services alone, I
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believe, is a 23-year employee.

So, again, I'm calling in today as a
concerned citizen.  Very interested in seeing our
district refocus its efforts on our core essential
services of clean drinking water, clean water for
drinking and protection, for the collection and the
treatment of sewage, and for recreational services
for which it was formed.  And I would ask that our
board members consider this at --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MR. WRIGHT:  Frank Wright, Crystal Bay.  
Couple things.  First of all, the blood

drive, I'd like the community to understand that
we're giving up our recreation center for a whole
day for a blood drive from a corporation company
that's located outside the Basin.  It has nothing to
do with the citizens here.  We give our blood, they
sell it to the hospitals, they don't make a lot of
money.  We get nothing in return for it, nothing
ever comes back to us.  Sure it's a nice gesture,
but you're giving up the Rec Center for a whole day.
All the employees are going to be sitting around
picking their noses, and we're paying for it.

The Parks and Rec director somehow has
gotten herself into believing that our facilities
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are to be given away to outside venues for free, and
we get to pay all the costs for drawing up
contracts, her involvement.  It's unbelievable.
Leave that as it may, throw that thing away, get rid
of these people, and we don't give them a year
contract or give them any kind of contract.  

The second thing is the Beach Deed.
Believe me, I understand the Beach Deed inside and
out.  Hiring an attorney to review and go over the
Beach Deed does no good.  It's worthless.  The
attorney's opinion is the attorney's opinion.  You
can get a janitor to do the same thing.  

The thing is you need to get a judicial
review, then you find out exactly what the Beach
Deed is capable of doing.  So unless we do that,
then you're just wasting your time and wasting a lot
of our money.  

As far as Riner, Wells, Cars, Usinger,
your hand-picked financials, that's nice.  I'm glad
that someone is looking into these things, but you
only pick certain things.  

Let's pick Mr. Winquest's promotion, of
all these people, costs us $2 million in added
employee costs.  Why didn't you point that out?  You
seemed to skip that.  
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As far as the three people that we had

that we're going to interview for the general
manager position, all three of them were not capable
of doing the job.  That came from your selection of
a company to go out and screen these people.
Obviously they didn't do a very good job of
screening them.  Why would you want to hire any one
of the three?  

And as far as the people that have left
here, most of them took off because they knew all
the crap was going to come to an end.

Wells, Cars, Usinger, Riner, I offered an
olive branch to you guys.  Call, we'll talk about
all this stuff.  I'm more than happy to share with
you what I know.  But you don't.  You just make up
you own numbers, your own facts, your own figures,
and then you sit here and spout them out.  

As far calling people "the angry eight,"
the disgruntled human beings of community, look at
you guys.  You caused a mess with your recall.
It's -- you spent thousands of dollars trying to
take it and get rid of two trustees.  You --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MATT:  That was our final comment on Zoom,

Chair.
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D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Moving on to approval of
the agenda, the Board has been informed that agenda
item F 4 has been removed, requested to be removed
by staff, so that is one change to the agenda.

Are there any other requests for
modifications?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I'd like to move F 5 to
general business, please.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  F 5, we will move that to
general business 0, then, if that's all right.  Any
other changes?

Seeing none, we will -- 
Counsel, do I have to take a motion or a

vote on that or are we able to just move forward if
there aren't any other comments?

MR. RUDIN:  In terms of moving the agenda,
no, you don't have to take a motion.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  
Moving on, then, to reports to the board.  

  REPORTS TO THE BOARD  
E 1.  General Manger's Monthly Status Report 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Beginning with the interim
General Manager's monthly status report for January,
found on pages 4 through 35 of the board packet.
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MR. BANDELIN:  As stated, the report

begins on page 4 of your packet materials.  The
report includes and contains the public -- the
records request log dating back several months, we
also include the January venue department status
reports as well, and the quarterly disclosures of
external energy reports.

I'll note that staff has developed a
closeout report for the effluent export pipeline,
GMP1, and I didn't get it in the packet materials in
time to deliver, so I'll include that in a future
board meeting, and also we'll provide a couple other
closeout reports for construction projects and so
forth.  

I think what staff's intention to do is
develop a new kind of form and get some board input
on really a nice form that would identify all the
financials in the report and other items, such as
what we learned from the particular project, what
went right, what went wrong.  

I do have a copy of the Burnt Cedar pool
closeout report.  I was at that board meeting, and I
don't recall it being received very well.  I think
our intention here in next few meetings with these
closeout reports of capital projects is, one,
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identify what constitutes a report, maybe not
procurement items, but what dollar amount or is it
construction or is it -- kind of what is it?  That
might be an item that we bring to the Board that
just talks about what would the Board like to see in
the closeout report that would suffice the needs of
the community and the Board as well.

Also just wanted to touch on a couple
items.  It almost kind of relates to a couple of the
calls that we heard this evening, but if I could
just get your attention to the venue facilities and
status report on page 8 and 9 of that section.  The
Board had asked, and we brought together a venue
status report for the facilities and events within
this fiscal year, to date.  We identified kind of
the different groups of events that you would see at
The Chateau facility, and then we provided like a
narrative of those different characteristics of
events.  

What I wanted to point out is if I was a
board member, you would probably ask, well, we talk
about -- like towards of each sentence, we talk
about the revenue per guest, and the question there
would be:  What was the cost of each one of those
guests?  
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I can tell you, our finance department is

working really hard.  We're going to get there, and
we are going to -- these particular venue status
reports are not financial reports, and we hear quite
a bit during public comments over the course of
these months and meetings that -- we're getting
there.  I can tell you that the finance department
is working diligently.  We're looking at the past,
we're looking at the future, we're looking at
internal controls.  We're going to get there to
where we'll have financial reports, they'll be
separate from the venue status reports, because the
venue status reports are updates on the venue, not
particularly all the financial pieces of it.

Also, we'll bring you a report on Your
Tahoe Place web redesign and rebuild of that
project.  I got a small report from Paul Raymore,
the lead of the instrumental piece of working
through that project, and I'll provide that in our
next meeting, an update on how that project is
going.  

Then, I guess, I'll hit on the public
records a little bit.  Why don't I take some
questions first, and then I'll have a couple more
comments.
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TRUSTEE NOBLE:  On page 5 of the board

packet on public records request log, there's two
items.  One was requested on October 2nd, the other
on October 27th.  In the first column, that status
says they're complete, however, on the date
completed or due date, they're blank.  I was
wondering if you could provide any information on
the status of those.

MR. BANDELIN:  I can.  With this new
platform, NextRequest, we're still working through,
I would say, some formatting or relaying information
on completed or when they were requested.  And then
we're also working with counsel on kind of the
procedure or the best way to -- the harder ones for
us to do right now is to do a query of when we have
a statement of a records request for particular
emails, we're working through some processes to be
able to be able to do that, and then be able to
provide that to legal counsel to be able, then,
forward on to the requester themselves. 

I'll be the first to admit that we're not
quite there with our processes and procedures, but
we're working towards being very proficient with the
NextRequest platform.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  With regards, then, to the
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October 27th request with regards emails, does that
one, then, it's not complete at this point?  I'm
just wondering.

MR. BANDELIN:  I'm looking at the District
Clerk, but I know correspondence, we did today, with
Mr. Homan on that particular request that we're
asking -- we were getting to inform that particular
person that we need an extension to be able to
complete that item.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Okay.  So then just if
that could be corrected, because I know there was
another one that said "extended."  

And then the one that Caroline Usinger
submitted on October 2nd, do you know -- if you
could update whether it was extended or was in fact
completed.

MR. BANDELIN:  I don't know the answer to
that one.  But we'll reflect this to be updated with
the -- maybe it's a different column or something.
Maybe we should talk to staff or the Board if
there's another column that says we're working it or
we provide an extension or ask for an extension.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  May I just interject
really quickly because I had the same question on
that.  I know I asked it, but I couldn't remember
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what the answer was.  

The ones that are prior to the ones that
have those little green checkmarks, the ones with
the little green checkmarks and with the hours in
the columns, the first two columns, that has been
since Heidi has taken over, and these are in
NextRequest.  And the ones that are above it with
the old process and Heidi didn't have the date
information on those.

So, everything that is here is now out in
NextRequest.  You can view it by going out to the
public records page on our website, and if you click
on where it's a logo for NextRequest, you can
actually pull up this entire list and view things.  

But those two, why they don't have dates,
is just because it was done by Ms. Herron prior to
Heidi's taking over.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Then what interim General
Manger Bandelin has said that the one from
October 27th is not actually completed at this
point, so just on the next agenda for 28th, that
those could be updated.

MS. WHITE:  That item specifically from
Mr. Homan has been given a new NextRequest number,
so it is further down the line.  You could find
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Mr. Homan's number in there.  I have recently
corresponded with him to let him know that between
legal and IT, I will have that information or at
least a date to him on when information will be
available.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I think my question
Heidi just answered, because it looks like there's
duplicates in there, and I think that answered my
question with the Mr. Homan one.

And I just -- as soon as we can get an
updated date, I see a lot of these have dates of
yesterday and today, and so I just want to make sure
that we could get an updated form as soon as you
have one.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  You got the heart of my
questions on the venues as well, because while these
reports are very well and good telling us how many
people we had, the danger is sometimes if we're
losing money on them, we're actually making it worse
by increasing volumes.  

Do you have an estimate of time of when
we'll actually see some financial reports to support
these?  Obviously with the budget cycle coming up,
it's important that we understand whether these
activities are actually supporting us or whether
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they're actually draining funds.  And with
facilities, there's one, there's several questions
brought up during the last budget cycle by the
projections.  

Having an average revue of 145 bucks or
something doesn't really help if the average cost is
165.  Do you have an estimate when we'll actually
see some financial reports along with these?

MR. BANDELIN:  I will confer with the
finance director and the assistant finance director,
and we'll provide some information on when we can
start seeing some financial reports for the venues.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Following up on public
records requests, I'm disappointed to see that we've
unearthed former finance director Navazio's
four-point font again.  Can we put these in
landscape format so they're actually readable by my
old eyes?  

The other question, I understood with the
new system it would save us staff time responding
again to the same question, but I've heard
complaints from the community that while we file the
answers, if the file's supplied along with the
answers, they're not viewable, so the same question
has to be asked again.  
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Is that correct?  Is that a feature or is

that a flaw?
MS. WHITE:  Inside of the system, every

request that is in there currently, if the answer
has been released to the requester, it is public for
anybody within this community to view.  The only
time is it not viewable is when staff is still
working on it or legal is still working on
redaction.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I suggest that, as board
members, we have a quick tutorial on how to use the
system.  I went through it with Heidi yesterday, and
it is very informative, it's very easy to find
things, but we need to make sure people are
understanding how to look for things and where to
look for things, and that includes all of us.  

I will ask that we all undergo that
training as well.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Can I just clarify,
Heidi, if there's a spreadsheet supplied to the
original request, that spreadsheet is also viewable
by anyone else in the public?  You know, last time I
looked a month ago, I found some situations where I
couldn't access the spreadsheet.

MS. WHITE:  After this evening, after we
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go through this specific log, which is currently
available to anybody in the community here in this
building, it will be posted on the website.  

I was waiting for Kari and Paul Raymore to
find a place on our website to place it on a regular
basis, and it will be there as well.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch, you're
unaware, but here in the room, yesterday when I was
going through this with our District Clerk, she was
kind enough to create and populate a spreadsheet
that is larger in font and, in addition, it is
resized to include all of the text that is contained
in every individual public records request so that
instead of just the first sentence, we can see the
entire thing.  That has made it much more helpful as
well.  

We will have this new format in all board
packets and posted on the website.  Again, you can
go in an view them individually as well as -- it's
more interactive than looking at the spreadsheet.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  We're talking about two
different spreadsheets.  I'm not taking about the
spreadsheet of the listing.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  What spreadsheet are you
referring to?
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  The response to the

inquiry includes a file attachment.  I looked at of
some these, and I was not able to open the
attachment.  That's why I want to make sure -- my
understanding is that should be viewable by
everyone, and I just wanted to check that that was
the case.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Yes, that is the case.
TRUSTEE DENT:  On page 15, I don't know if

that's an appropriate place to get an update on the
DOWL report that was mentioned in the public
comment.

And then page 20, I had a couple of
questions.  One refers to, a couple of meetings
back, we asked -- requested the Rec Center
maintenance list to be brought to the Board, and we
haven't seen that yet.  

I think we also, last meeting, discussed
there was a $3 million potential appropriation for
tennis, and I want to get an update on what is going
on there with the tennis courts.  

And dog park, I think, has kind of fallen
off the long range calendar.

Also, just a comment, because you brought
this up earlier as it relates to prior section as
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far as just listings revenues, page 20, we list just
revenues, such as swim team, three kids, $218
revenue.  And I'm just curious if we're just picking
certain -- or how we're going about selecting these?  

A few years ago, we had no reporting on
programs, and it seems like the youth programs have
kind of fallen off.  I know we do make decent money
on some of the programs from having one of my kids
in the programs, seeing what we pay, and what they
do.  

It would be just interesting to get a more
comprehensive report in the near future, especially
since we're going into the budget season, and it
seems like we have been left in the dark for the
last year.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I have a couple of
questions, seeing that -- my question is there was a
comment made by Mr. Katz about a public records
request that we have not fulfilled, but it sounds
like we have fulfilled, would you like to clarify
that, please?

MS. WHITE:  With Mr. Katz's request, he
asked specific questions of Public Works, interim
Public Works Director Kate Nelson, and we provided
the information.  And with as many as our other
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requests have been, new questions, because there was
a twist to the wording, came back, and this was not
what he asked for.

So, I requested some backup and some
information from Ms. Nelson, and she feels the same
way, that this was not the same request.  

And so until I could get that response, I
was holding on responding back to Mr. Katz.  And he
will get an email once I have more information on
how to handle this type of request, because they do
tend to change the question with a small twist and
say:  This is not what I was requesting.  

There needs to be more clarification in
these requests, a more-pointed request on exactly
what document you are actually looking for.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  Thank you.
TRUSTEE DENT:  I was just going to ask:

Are we requesting the requesters use the form?
Isn't that the intent, to get a little bit more
pointed with questioning rather than having pages of
an email?

MS. WHITE:  We are requesting, but, by
law, they are not required to to fill those form
out.  And inside of the NextRequest system, there's
also that same specific information.  But, again, we
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are not requiring that they use or system.  By law,
we cannot.

TRUSTEE DENT:  Understood.  I'm just
trying to help the requesters.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And I think if a
request -- we fulfill a request and feel that we've
fulfilled it, if a new question comes back, my
feeling is we open a new public records request and
it gets processed that way.

So we will just continue to work on this.
I appreciate all of the effort.  And I would
encourage people go out to the public records
request page and click on that large NextRequest,
and you can view the status of everything as
requests are being completed.  It is a very nice
user interface.

The other question I have, Mr. Bandelin,
is related to the U.S. Forest Service contract.  Is
there action that the Board needs to take with that
extension of the lease from the U.S. Forest Service
at Diamond Peak?

MR. BANDELIN:  I don't believe so, unless
the Board would like me to bring it to them for
viewing.  But I don't believe -- there's no
particular district policy that says that would have
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been approved by the Board, but we can certain bring
it forward.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I was just curious.  But,
yeah, that's fine.  I'm happy that you were so
proactive and you got it taken care of and it's
still skiable terrain.

I wanted to make sure that we get on our
long range calendar these closeout reports from
Public Works.  

And I, too, notice that tennis has just
disappeared.  It's not listed on the Public Works
status report, and it's not listed -- there's no
reference from the Director of Parks and Rec, so I'm
a bit puzzled because I know we've asked for that.
And we asked for it again at our last meeting with
the change of the budget.  

But I agree with Trustee Dent that our
Parks and Rec report, we need to be all
encompassing, and youth programs seem to be not
included in this, and I think that's a very
important aspect of the services we provide to our
community.

Thank you.  I do like where you're headed
with these monthly reports, and I appreciate the
time it takes to put them together.  They are
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informative, not only for us, but for the public as
well.

TRUSTEE DENT:  I was going to make a
comment.  We are making huge strides forward, and
just, like, echoing what Trustee Schmitz said.
Thank you.  I still think there's some work to be
done, but that the reporting is much better than
it's been in the past.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  With to other questions,
we'll move on to E 2.  

E 2.  General Fund Reserves 
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Report to the Board, a

verbal report, from the Director of Finance on the
department's strategy for returning the general fund
reserves to be in compliance with Board Policy 7.1,
section 2.1.  Requesting staff is interim Director
of Finance Bobby Magee, page 36 of the board packet.

MR. MAGEE:  Several months ago, I made a
recommendation to the Board to build out the budget
team within the finance department, and the Board
ultimately accepted that recommendation.  And one of
those positions was the assistant director of
finance.  

Tonight, I would like to introduce to the
Board Mr. Adam Cripps, who is our permanent
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Assistant Director of Finance.  I asked Mr. Cripps
to really take charge of the budget process, and
this team has really hit the ground running.
They've taken off, and we've gotten very positive
feedback from the departments.  

We felt this was a very appropriate
question that was asked by the Board at the last
meeting when we made the recommendation to fund some
of the activities that we had talked about.  And so
given some of the items that are on the agenda later
tonight, I asked Mr. Cripps to be in attendance
tonight.  

And with permission from the Chair, I'd
like to turn it over to Mr. Cripps and allow him to
make the presentation tonight.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Please.  Thank you,
Mr. Cripps.

MR. CRIPPS:  Good evening.  As Bobby
mentioned, my name is Adam Cripps, and I am the
Assistant Director of Finance here at the District.

To jump right into it, at the meeting of
January 31st, '24, the Board approved the
augmentation to the general fund in order to fund
the steps the Board has taken to right the
financials of the District.
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At that meeting, Trustee Tonking stated a

valid concern of the fund balance in the general
fund and meeting the Board's set requirements of
fund balance.  Fund Balance Policy 7.1.0, which
directs staff to meet the target general fund
reserve level of 15 percent of annual budgeted
expenditures, less transfers and debt.  

So, to rectify any shortcomings with the
fiscal year '25 budget, the finance department has
taken approach of running a zero dollar-based budget
cycle.  Through this methodology, a full analysis of
each budget line will be completed.  Revenue
estimates which apply to the general fund are due
from the State mid-March.  A reassessment will be
completed once those estimates are received.

Starting with the fiscal year '25 budget
cycle, staff will no longer recommend any additional
inter-fund transfers from the general fund.

Progress and expectations toward meeting
fund balance compliance will be presented to the
Board throughout the remaining budget workshops.  It
is not an attempt to increase CAP contributions; it
is an exercise of living within our means.  To set
expectations, this actually could become a
multi-year approach.  
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With that, I am happy to answer any

questions you may have.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Are there any questions?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have two questions.

In terms of zero-based budgeting, are you only doing
that in the general fund?

MR. CRIPPS:  No.  That's going to be
district wide.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Great.  
And I'm guessing you're pretty far in that

process?  Because it does take a long time, and
we're getting close to May.  

MR. CRIPPS:  That is correct.  We've
already established opening up the '25 budget, as
well as given it to the departments to begin entry.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Great.
And then I am -- when you were talking

about -- I guess one of my concerns is I think in
some areas, our budget is already pretty lean.  Do
you have a plan B for when we still can't increase
reserves?  Because I'm not sure just inter-fund
transferring -- we shouldn't be inter-fund
transferring at all anyway because we no money and
we will be in violation of NRS.  

But my bigger concern is:  How are we
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going to build them up?  Because I have a fear that
zero-based budgeting isn't going to get us all the
way there.  I've done this in a lot of different
places, and it's not always as successful as people
hoped to increase reserves.

Do we have any other plans in mind to
increase them?

MR. CRIPPS:  Well, it's a multi-faceted
approach.  What you do is you start off with a
zero-based budget, and then you have your bottom
line.  Once you have a bottom line, how far off
target are you?  And, then, can you make adjustments
within those budgets at that time?  

So, you've gone through your analysis and
through the zero base, you give yourself, okay,
here's my starting point, what metrics are we trying
to hit?  

Just suspending any kind of inter-fund
transfers, that's just an approach for a
temporary until we get fund balance more in order
and under compliance.

But what you do is you take steps and you
take several cracks at:  How many times are we going
to review the budget?  How long will it take us at
this point with the resources we have to meet
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compliance benchmarks?

So, it's not just a one-and-done approach
to it where we enter the budget, we take it to a
budget workshop.  There's actually reviews that are
done with management throughout the entire district
to make sure:  What levels of reserve do we have?
Are we using fund balance?  Are we meeting
compliance benchmarks?  And we don't take it just as
the status quo anymore.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Okay.  I think, maybe,
we're talking about two different things.

I think my question for you is -- and
maybe I can frame this a little differently -- what
plan do we have in place if some sort of emergency
or something comes up, in terms of our general fund,
when we only have roughly $100,000 left before we
are in violation of NRS?  I'm less even concerned
about Policy 7.1.0 at this point.

MR. CRIPPS:  So, you're talking about
contingencies looking forward?  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yes.  Because we're very
close to that four percent threshold now.  I think
we're at 5.6 percent, and I could have my math
wrong.

MR. CRIPPS:  With that, what -- so that's
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what the budget cycle in the zero-based budget is
going to do for us this year.  How close are we to
meeting compliance, and not just NRS compliance,
Board compliance?  

So just because at this point in time
we're, maybe, one percent away from NRS compliance,
that doesn't meaning taking a look at the fiscal '25
budget, that will also be that low.  

In '24, and what we've accomplished
through the budget augmentation, we anticipate
several of those items being a one-time cost.  There
are going to be definitely some ongoing costs that
are included with that, but not all of it.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  That's totally fair.  
I guess my question is do we have any

concerns between now and June 30th of 2024 that we
will become out of compliance with NRS before we do
the 2025 budget?  I guess I'm not being very clear,
and I don't know how rephrase it to make sense.

MR. MAGEE:  I can take this question
because I've actually looked at this one
specifically.  

We did take a look at the NRS, and the
four percent is -- it's not an actual hard cap.
What it is is it's a cap that, if we were to fall
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below that at the end of the fiscal year, that,
then, the local Committee on Government Finance
through the State would have the opportunity to
bring this in front of their board and to discuss
whether a fiscal emergency exists.  

And so I've been working with the budget
team on this, and as of right now, we do not have
any concerns that we will fall below that threshold.  

As Mr. Cripps has indicated, we're going
to be looking at this budget line by line and
figuring out what was one-time costs and what are
things -- recommendations for various budget
solutions that we can bring forward to the Board in
order to start to bolster those reserves back up to
come into Board compliance, which is obviously far
greater than the NRS requirement.  

I hope that answers your question.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah, that does answer

my question.  
So then my guess is even for some reason

we were to fall below, if we talked to the local
committee, they -- our budget for '25 is looking
like we've made those proper adjustments, it would
probably be less of a concern.

MR. MAGEE:  That is correct.  
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I've already disclosed to the State where

we're at with our current projections.  And, as
Mr. Cripps indicated, we will be doing some
estimated actuals on this year's budget as we move
through the process.  

We'll have a little better of an
understanding around end of March, mid-April on
where we think this budget is going to finish
this year.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm pleased to hear that
we're going down to zero-based budgeting.  I think
that has been long overdue.

I do echo Trustee Tonking's point, it does
take a lot of time and effort.  I do believe it's
worth it because we've just historically built up
budgets, once something gets in as a budget line
item, it tends to stay there.  And I know during
last year's budget cycle, the trustees were having
to do almost random picks of certain line items,
which is not the most effective way to do it.  I'm
happy to hear we're moving forward.

How far down are you going to go to each
individual line item?

MR. CRIPPS:  Yes, every single line item,
district wide.
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Excellent.  Thank you.

And any way we can help, feel free to reach out.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other questions?
TRUSTEE DENT:  This has been a request of

trustees for years.  We were told it was impossible,
couldn't happen, take too long.  So, sounds like you
may have a path through that, so maybe you guys know
what you're doing, so I appreciate that.  

One area of focus -- and I stressed it
quite a bit last year and in year's past -- is the
capital improvement projects.  We're constantly
overbudgeting what we need for our projects.  And so
we tell the community that we're going to be
building these projects that we never get to, and
then it becomes a carryover.  

And ever year, it seems like there's at
least a million dollars of projects that either fall
off or don't happen.  And I would just like us to
try and get a little bit more accurate with that
number.  If we have the bandwidth to perform those
projects, let's collect the money, and let's do
them.  

But it sounds like the last year's budget,
we didn't have the bandwidth to perform several of
these projects, such as the Beach House, such as the

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  52
skate park; two projects we all thought were
starting this year, and now another year out because
capacity for staff.

So I think we should be looking at taking
a deep dive into the projects, and it sounds like
you guys will get there.

Thank you both.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I concur with the

comments.  Thank you for going to zero-based
budgeting.  It's lot of work.  And I agree with
Trustee Dent because when we budget for capital
improvement projects and then we don't deliver them,
we're impacting the pricing structure that we're
passing on to our ratepayers, be it through a rec
fee or be it through a user fee.  

And so we need to be realistic and say,
yes, we're going to get these projects done.
Because it's too many years that we go, year
after year, and don't get something accomplished.  I
think that's really important.

The other thing I wanted to just ask about
is as you're going to through this process, are you
also evaluating -- one of the issues that Moss Adams
identified was that we had sort of an antiquated and
outdated central services cost allocation model.  
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Is that something that you're also

tackling through this process?
MR. CRIPPS:  One of the items that we will

be looking to add into this year's upcoming budget
will be an updated version of a cost allocation
plan.

What they're going to do is a full-blown
study on every metric that can possibly fit into
what a cost allocation should be, and we do
anticipate including that in the budget.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's
been long overdue as well.  Thank you for taking on
these really difficult issues and moving them
forward.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  One other follow-up
question.  Obviously the zero-based budgeting is
going to help us look at the cost angle.  

But given that so much of our funding
comes from user revenues, are we confident that
we're going to have accurate-enough summations and
assessments of potential revenues based on this
year's -- are we going to be able to get the numbers
out timely, in a timely manner, so we can actually
look at what's happening on the revenue side?

MR. CRIPPS:  Yes, I am confident with
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that.  What the budget team is doing is working side
by side with the departments almost on a daily
basis.  We're really taking into consideration their
perspective and how they operate, and we can see the
financials that are coming in with that, so I'm
confident in that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  And there's going to be
a sanity check on these as well?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  They just chuckled, so I
guess that's a yes.

MR. CRIPPS:  Yes, there will be.
TRUSTEE DENT:  I thank both of you, but

thank your staff as well.  I know a lot of changes
have happened over the last six months, and we
appreciate the implementation of new processes.
Thank you.

MR. MAGEE:  I appreciate that.  We will
definitely pass that message along to staff, and I
know they're very appreciative when they receive
comments like that from the Board.

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Seeing no further

comments, we'll close the agenda item.  Moving on to
item F.  
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F.  CONSENT CALENDAR  

F 1.  Meeting Minutes Approval  
F 2.  Board Policies Numerical Sequence 
F 3.  Whistleblower Procedure Modifications 

 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  The items that remain on
the consent calendar are items 1 through 3, 4 was
removed, and 5 was moved to general business.  Do I
hear a motion for approval of the consent calendar?  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I move we approve the
consent calendar.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do I hear a second?  
TRUSTEE DENT:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?  
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
TRUSTEE DENT:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.  Motion passes

five to zero.
Moving on, then, to general business.

G.  GENERAL BUSINESS 
G 0.  McDonald Carano - Beach Deed 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  General business item G 0
to is review, discuss, and possibly approve an
agreement with McDonald Carano for legal services as
it relates to the Beach Deed and Incline Village
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General Improvement District beaches in an amount
not to exceed $50,000.  

I was the requesting trustee on that, and
the impetus behind this is that last March, the
Board had approved an amount to -- not to exceed for
any questions that came up during the year related
to policies, what have you, that pertained to the
Beach Deed.

We did not use more than about $6,000 of
that budgeted fund.  And we had been recently --
when reaching out and asking for some assistance
with reviewing Policy 16.1, existing legal counsel
had advised myself to seek alternatives.  Those
alternatives were sought out, and it was the
recommendation -- the recommendation is to move
forward with McDonald Carano.  

McDonald Carano has a history with the
District.  They were the District's legal counsel
for many years in the past.  They also are legal
counsel for the effort surrounding the interest in
pursuing a city of Incline Village and Crystal Bay.
And one of the first issues that the group pursuing
the city investigated was issues pertaining to the
Beach Deed and the legalities of the Beach Deed, so
it was a natural fit.  
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We reached out, and they did a conflict of

interest research and background and came to the
conclusion that they felt comfortable that they
would be able to answer questions as they would come
up.  

It's not to go and spend this amount; it
is to retain legal services for the Board so that as
we have questions related to ordinance changes, what
have you, policies that have an impact to the
beaches for special legal counsel review.

That's the background of that.  I'll open
it up to questions.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  This would be on page 175
of the board packet, and it would just be something
to clarify, under number 2, hourly rates for
personnel, under the associate Eric Duhon.  It's
$475 per hour, but when I look at associates
three lines down, it's 300 to 425 to per hour.  And
so just would want a clarification on which is it,
and is Eric Duhon an exception to the general
associates or is it -- that dollar amount, it just
doesn't match.

And the other thing, just for full
transparency, and this was last spring, I believe,
Todd Lowe, who you had referenced, had reached out,
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who's been exploring the prospects of incorporating
Incline Village, and reached out to the Board and
asked if we wanted to talk to Josh Hicks to query
him on their research with regards to beach access.
It was determined that a minority of the Board could
do that, and so Trustee Schmitz and myself met with,
I believe it was Josh Nelson, Indra Winquest --

TRUSTEE DENT:  Point of order.  Since it
was a nonmeeting legal meeting -- 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We can't be --
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I wasn't going to disclose

what we were going to -- just that it took place.
Sorry, and thank you for that.

Just it was -- and we queried Mr. Hicks
with regards to beach access.  I thought that his --
it was very clear that they had done a tremendous
amount of research, and he is very professional.  

And that carries on to my previous
interactions with Mr. Hicks over the last 15, 20
years, mainly with the PUC and the Governor's
office, and he's always been a consummate
professional.  With that regards, I'm fine with
that.

It's a little bit difficult with regards
to the conflicts of waivers, because I don't know
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what else they have been reviewing, but I put my
trust in Mr. Hicks.  If he -- given my knowledge of
his professionalism, if he doesn't believe that
there's a conflict, then I will put my faith in
that.  It would be just nice to verify that.  

I did see that there was one public
records request that he had submitted back on
September 11th, with regards to Golf Genius.  It's
not -- these are two separate issues, and so I can
see that.  And Northern Nevada is a very small legal
community, and it is difficult to get proper counsel
without some sort of crossover.  

At this point, I am fine with that.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm just a (Zoom drop).
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  You might have to turn

your camera off.  It's seeming that you might not
have sufficient bandwidth.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I wanted to confirm that
McDonald Carano will have sufficient background
information so we should be able to respond to a lot
of these queries very quickly without going and
having to do extensive research (Zoom drop) because
we already have the knowledge.

TRUSTEE DENT:  I'll just disclose that I
did work with McDonald Carano in a private capacity
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as for a, I guess, previous recall campaign thing,
but that all ended.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Are there any other
questions or comments?

I appreciate the discussion on this.  I
think this discussion, potentially, answered
concerns that were raised during public comment as
well.  Thank you for that.

Would anyone care to make a motion?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I move that the Board of

Trustees approve an agreement with McDonald Carano
for legal services as it relates to the Beach Deed
and IVGID beaches in the amount not to exceed
$50,000, replacing the existing agreement with
Thorndal Armstrong.

TRUSTEE DENT:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'd like to just clarify

that I heard Trustee Noble's question about the
associate's rate, and I will inquire about that and
I will get clarification on that.  So that being
said, are there any other discussion?

All those in favor?  
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
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TRUSTEE DENT:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.  
5/0.  Thank you.
Moving on to G 1.  

G 1.  General Manager Recruitment Process 
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Review and possibly

approve the action plan for the general manager
recruitment process based on staff's recommendation.
Requesting staff member is Director of Human
Recourses Erin Feore, pages 183 through 188 of the
board packet.

MS. FEORE:  You've all probably had a
chance to read through my memo.  

Just to give you a quick little update, I
have reached to a number of executive search firms,
and one from two weeks ago replied back late last
night, so I haven't had a chance to pull their
information and lake a look at it.  I can if so
directed at a future board meeting.  

But that's one of the reasons -- and I
noted that in my notes on background -- we just
struggled with finding some folks who have the
capability of working with us at this time.  

Additionally, I strongly suspect we're
going to run into the same delays and/or concerns
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with engaging with a direct placement service.  

And so the staff is recommending that the
Board consider appointing current interim Director
of Finance Bobby Magee into the general manager
role, and direct me to work with general counsel on
a contract however that may look.  

I'll leave it to you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'm going to take a pause

because Trustee Dent isn't here.  And I apologize.
Usually I'm the one asking for a break.  I guess
when I'm behind the mic, I'm forgetting.  Trustee
Tonking and Trustee Tulloch, are you okay if we just
continue with this agenda item once Trustee Dent
comes back?  Yes.  Okay.

So, Trustee Dent, we're at the point of
taking any questions from Director of Human
Resources.  Are there questions, things that anyone
would like to comment on this point?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  So, thank you for all
your efforts in this.  We're -- is there any
insight, even in the future, of what we need to do
as a board in order to ensure that we can start
working with these types of partners?  Any feedback
you received from the firms that would be helpful
for us?  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  63
MS. FEORE:  Yeah, I haven't received any

feedback from any of the firms that I reached out
to, which is kind of part of the concern or part of
the delay on this one.  Nobody has reached out to
say:  I don't want to work in the District.  

They just haven't reached out at all, so
I'm at a little bit of loss there.

I did get feedback from Bob Hall and
Associates.  I spoke with a representative there,
and they basically said that there's no point in
defining insanity by doing the same thing over and
over again and expecting a different outcome.  They
thought that for the best results for the District
would be to, potentially, work with another outside
firm to provide us with the information that we need
and the services that we need.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  When you first reached
out to firms back when we began this process, did
you get a faster response from them?

MS. FEORE:  Yes, I did.  I received
response within a couple of days.  The responses --
like I said, I sent out information following our
last board meeting, and like I said, I just heard
back from one today.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Okay.  Thank you.
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  We've heard a lot in

public comment about the (Zoom drop) of contractors
being proposed.  Can you confirm -- I seem to recall
the most recent general manager's appointment, he
was given a three-year contract; is that correct?

MS. FEORE:  I believe, and perhaps Sergio
can assist with this one, but I believe in the State
of Nevada -- if I remember right, it was originally
requested to be three years, but then it was
determined, per NRS statutes, that you can only go,
potentially, up to two years.  I think it was
brought back after that.  

MR. RUDIN:  Under NRS Chapter 354, there's
an exception to the requirement that you not expend
unappropriated funds, and one of those exceptions is
employment agreements for professional services for
two years or less.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  For two years or less.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  (Zoom drop), so the two

years (Zoom drop).
MS. FEORE:  I'm not sure if you can still

hear us, but I couldn't -- it was very choppy.  I
couldn't hear what you were asking.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm just pointing out
that despite the (Zoom drop) collections, the
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previous general manager was initially appointed on
a three-year contract, it was incorrect, it was
reduced (Zoom drop) years, so we're just following
precedent in that respect.

MS. FEORE:  Okay.
TRUSTEE DENT:  I don't know if I have a

question, but I guess I, last meeting, suggested
staff come back with some recommendations, so thank
you for doing that.

Number 3 caught me off guard a little bit
form the standpoint of didn't think about that.  But
having been the chair over the last -- in the tenure
that Bobby has been here, I know how integral of a
piece he's been to the puzzle to make things happen
and continue to move things forward, so it makes a
lot of sense.

But, yeah, thank you for bringing forward
the recommendations.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other comments or
questions?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Going to page 185 of the
recommendation with regards to the length of the
contract of two years, given that Mr. Magee, for
reasons outside of his control, won't be here always
on a daily basis, and that's unique relative to past
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GM's over the last decade or two, the two-year
length of the contract gives me pause, just because
it's such a unique circumstance, and so what I'd
like to see is a one-year contract with an option to
extend it to a second, given that it's unique and
we're in transitional period.  

That would be my recommendation with that.
I would support hiring Mr. Magee at this point, but
the two-year length of the contract, all else being
equal, gives me pause.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have some similar
concerns about the 50 percent time in person, and I
understand that is out of his control.  I just have
a concern about that.  

And I also am a little bit concerned about
losing our financial director right when we just
started putting all this money into finances.  So it
makes me a little nervous in that sense.  

And I think it's probably not an
apples-to-apples comparison to compare the term
length of how long the interim financial director
had been here to our prior GM.  Our prior GM had
been with the District for 17 years before and had
been serving as interim GM for 18 months, so we got
a good trial period before he was appointed to his
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position.  

I am a lot more hesitant on this
recommendation for a few reasons.  I would prefer a
one-year trial period, and then the option to renew
for three years or two years, but I sound a little
bit more extreme than Trustee Noble is on this.  

I just think this person really has to
have a pulse on the community and know what's going
on, and being here 50 percent of the time is really
hard.  I also am unsure about his qualifications in
this field and having not really seen him that long
within the District or him being at all integrated
in our community, I fear that there could be some
pushback.

That's just my thoughts right now.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I have had the opportunity

to work very closely with interim director Magee
over the past few months, with it being more intense
since becoming Board Chair.  And I have been
impressed by his ability to take very complicated,
very mixed up situations and make sense of them.
And he's not afraid to tackle the really difficult
issues, as I think we've already seen him
demonstrate.  

I think it's in the best interest of the
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District that we keep the momentum going.  He's
integrated well with the Board, he's integrated well
with staff, and he has more knowledge than anyone
from the outside has about what going on, what
challenges we face, and I'm appreciative of his
interest and willingness to step up to those
challenges.

I think he's the right person, with right
demeanor, and the right capabilities and educational
background to do -- have a positive impact on the
District, not only the staff, but the residents as
well, by getting all of these issues of the past
resolved.  

I think it's great to hear my fellow
trustees being supportive of staff's recommendation
with moving this forward.  I do hear that there's
some concerns to be addressed about time in the
office and duration of the contract.  And I would be
willing to work with Mr. Magee and director of
finance Feore to come back to the Board with a
proposed contract for the Board's consideration.

I think that we're making really good
progress, and I think that the best way to keep the
progress moving is to go forward with Mr. Magee.  

I feel that we have learned so much about
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what is missing and what needs to be cleaned up,
from HR policies to contracts, to our finances, it's
going to take us a couple of years to get all this
in order.

And so I personally would like to see it
with a two-year commitment, because I think it's
going to take that amount of time to work through
from one issue to the other.  But that's something
that we could bring back after review and for board
discussion.

That's my recommendation.  And I just
wanted to say thank you to all of the effort that
has been put into this and all thought that's been
put into this and the willingness of staff to work
together and find a solution.

Thank you all for working together and
coming up with a solution.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have one more
question.  Trustee Schmitz, what are you thinking on
a timeline for this?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I know you had told me
this morning that you were going to be gone, right?  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yes.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  So my thought process was

to take your recommendation and either attempt to
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bring it back for our special meeting on the 6th.
That would be what I would target.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Okay.  I was just
confirming timeline.  Thank you.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Does that sound
acceptable?

Do I need to have a motion to move this
forward, counsel, or do we have direction?

MR. RUDIN:  If you want the Board to
designate you as the person responsible for working,
I think a motion would be appropriate.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  Thank you.
Would anyone care to make a motion?
MR. RUDIN:  And also a motion would help

us in terms of knowing what to put in the contract,
if the Board has further direction.  

TRUSTEE DENT:  As far as what to put in
the contract?  

MR. RUDIN:  Yes.  In terms of term length.
Additionally, the Board was presented with a draft,
sort of placeholder agreement, so if there are any
other directions that the Board would like to
provide on contract terms, this is the best time to
do so.

TRUSTEE DENT:  I will elaborate a little
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further before I make a motion.  I would say one of
the concerns that I've learned in what HR has to go
through when hiring new employees is are they going
to be a good fit?  Are they going to work, you know
like our community be, put up with our community,
whatever you want to call it.  

And given that Mr. Magee has been here
six, seven months and is saying yes to this, we're
not -- there's already been a trial run, and we
talked about an interim director position for 18
months.  It seems like Mr. Magee's jumped in and is
running with it.  

Appreciate your leadership.  Since you've
been here, you've tackled a lot of things that
either the Board's been oblivious to, unaware of, or
just sat shelf for too long because we couldn't do
it.  There's a lot of stuff coming off that list.  I
appreciate your efforts.

When I think of the duration associated
with -- or the term associated with this sort of
contract, to me, stability is the most important
thing, especially through a transition like this,
and having an interim general manager in the role
for seven, eight months, I think, another general
manager in a role for another year doesn't really do
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it.  

There's a lot of things that have been
moving and changing, and I think it's important to
have stability.  I would be in favor of the two-year
agreement, per staff's recommendation.  

And then also given Mr. Cripps'
presentation this evening, it seems very
knowledgeable, very confident, very impressive.  I
think we're in good hands having Mr. Magee as, say,
his lead in helping bring him up to speed, I feel
like it answers the call to what we were looking for
back in the hiring process.  

And we talked, there was concern by the
Board of hiring an assistant director of finance and
adding more staff and questions brought up:  Is this
someone that's going to be able to move into that
role?  There's was some back and forth, and it
sounds like we found to right person.  

I definitely would be in favor of this.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I would echo (Zoom

drop).
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch, you're

muted right now.  And, perhaps, you could actually
call -- try it again.  

MATT:  Trustee Tulloch, there should be a
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phone number on your Zoom invite that you might have
better success with.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Why don't we just take a
brief break, five-minute break, allow Trustee
Tulloch --

If you can hear us, if you could please
exit the Zoom and use the dial-in phone number.  

We will reconvene at 7:45.  Thank you.
(Recess 7:40 p.m. to 7:45 p.m.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch, I think

you were trying to make some comments and we
couldn't understand, so go ahead.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I would just like to
echo the comments made by Trustee Dent.  I think
having also worked very closely with interim Finance
Director Magee over the last six months, and as we
uncovered so many issues on the finance side, start
making movement to get these corrected, Trustee Dent
is correct, it needs a two-year term to get -- carry
through all these things.  

I think also the revelation tonight that
we're going to be able to move to zero-based
budgeting, which many of us have campaigned for for
years, it's a huge step forward as well.  

I would echo Trustee Dent's sentiment, and
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we should move forward on a two-year contract basis.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Back to the question:
Would anyone care to make a motion to give clarity
to the direction being given?

TRUSTEE DENT:  I'll move that we accept
staff's recommendation number 3 for -- yeah, as
written, and allow for Chair Schmitz to be the
liaison through this process.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  There's a motion.  Is
there a second?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any discussion?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I think there are two

trustees that expressed some reservations with the
regards to the two-year contract at least at this
point.  

I would request that the motion and the
second be amended to allow Chair Schmitz to take
that into consideration when she's negotiating the
final terms of the proposed contract with Mr. Magee
and bring it back.  And that we can decide at that
point what is -- if it is, in fact, appropriate.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I was just going to say
that I support that amendment.  But also I just feel
like we need to practice some of our due diligence
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and make sure that if this isn't a good fit, we
still have the opportunity to figure that out,
especially given the difference that has occurred
from any other GM that we have where they're
spending 50 percent of their time not here,
physically.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Understood.  This would
not -- what this would be is directing us to come
back to the Board for the Board's review of the
details.  So that's what it would be.  That would
happen at the meeting on the 6th.

The other thing that I would like to
include is clarification as to time in the office so
that we all are clearly understanding what the
expectations are.  And I would like Mr. Magee to
come back at the March 6th meeting with his vision
of an organizational chart.  

Because we, as Trustee Tonking stated,
don't want to lose any of the momentum that we have
had for the efforts in the finance department.  And
so I think that he needs to make sure that all of us
are comfortable with his organization, and that
we're not going to be missing a beat on all of these
very timely and important efforts that they're
undertaking.
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With that amendment, go ahead, Trustee

Dent.
TRUSTEE DENT:  I just accepted -- or I

move that we accept option 3 of staff's
recommendation, and everything you just said, I feel
like it's in line with option 3.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Is there a second?
Trustee Tulloch seconded.  Okay.

The motion has been made, it's been
seconded, so all those in favor, please state aye.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE DENT:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Opposed?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  No.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  No.  Because with the

two-year contract element, I'm still not clear
whether or not that is in play or it's a hard
two years.  So with without that clarification, I'm
a no.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  All right.  Thank
you.

So the motion passed three to two.  We
will come back at the March 6th meeting with a draft
of a contract and a draft of a proposed
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organizational structure.  

And that will be on the meeting of March
the 6th, the special meeting.  Trustee Tonking will
not be available for a meeting at the end of
February, and we agree that it's important for all
of us to be partaking in this discussion.
H.  REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Moving on to redactions, I
don't believe we have any.  
I.  LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Moving on, then, to the
long range calendar, can be found on page 189
through 188 -- I'm sorry -- 90.  The numbers are a
little off here.

MR. BANDELIN:  The District Clerk and I
took quite a few notes of the comments that were
brought up during the General Manager's report.  I
think I would be safe to say that the Chair and I
have a really good working relationship with the
clerk, and I'll just note that -- if I could get
just some acceptance to be able to get this agenda
and the narratives of the agenda out to the Chair
and counsel for review earlier than that date that's
suggested of 2/16, the Chair and I and the clerk
will work on making sure we bring back all the items
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that we mentioned in the General Manager's report.

I will tell you that the utility master --
or infrastructure master plan, there was an
amendment to that DOWL agreement with more work to
be done.  It's not on the calendar, but I checked
today and it's slated to come, the April 10th
meeting, because of that amendment.  I believe the
amendment was fire flows, and that amendment was
brought up in the last report we did on contracts,
so that's why it was pushed out for that additional
work that was done by the DOWL group.  

The Chair and I and the District Clerk
will come up with the narrative for the agenda of
the Tennis Center reports.  

I would -- and the Chair and I could talk
about -- I would just make a suggestion that the Rec
Center maintenance costs survey might be something
that we inform the Board, may be more in line with
our strategic budget planing workshop at the special
meeting, because that's just one venue where all
that list of all the items needs to be put in a
prior list.  And we can talk about all the venues at
once, versus just one particular, as an agenda.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  One thing I just want to
inform the Board on is that Trustee Tonking will be
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bringing to the Board, on March 13th,
recommendations related to clubs.  She has that
agenda item for the 13th.  

And just to let my fellow trustees know
that we have discovered that there's been a number
of things that sort of have fallen off this
calendar, so there's much that needs to be added
here that was on it at one point in time.  We're
implementing a new process to ensure that things
don't disappear from our long range calendar because
this is our working template for the year.

I do have a question about on -- for the
28th, what is this survey, the Tennis Center?  I
know that we did a geo-type study.  Is this related
to coming back to the Board with recommendations on
tennis?  I just didn't understand what this survey
was.  It might just be a land survey?

MR. BANDELIN:  I'll have to report back on
that in a future item.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  The other thing,
just to let my fellow trustees know, many of these
things for the 28th, from Public Works are small
dollar items.  I had reached out to staff and said,
"If these things are budgeted and are part of our
plan, that they either will be on the consent
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calendar or perhaps staff will choose to utilize the
approval process that BBK has put together."

MR. BANDELIN:  That's correct.  They will
be following Policy 3.1.0.  These are not emergency
projects, I would say.  The policy really states to
emergency projects would go to Trustee Schmitz.  

We just thought it would be like a kind of
little bit more transparent to bring in front of the
Board.  And if they don't meet the criteria outlined
in Policy 3.1.0 by not being funded or budgeted for,
then they wouldn't meet the criteria and would be in
general business.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you for that
clarification.

TRUSTEE DENT:  One recommendation on page
189 would be to group some of these, like for the
agreements, and if they're all Public Works, put
them all together.  If you look through this, there
will be agreement, fifth one down is an agreement,
sixth one down's an agreement.  

It just seems like all the agreements
would go together, and same with if it's all coming
from Public Works, maybe we could group Public Works
together rather than having ski in the middle.

MR. BANDELIN:  That's exactly right.
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That's one of the tasks that the Chair and the clerk
and I are working on, to make this calendar a little
bit more pro.

And then could we talk a little bit about
the proposed date for the town hall meeting?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Sure.
MR. BANDELIN:  And time?
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I want to back up, if I

could, for one second.  
One of the items that fell off the long

range calendar was an agenda item for Trustee
Tulloch, and it was for the capital -- the Capital
Investment Committee to come back to the Board with
recommendations related to the capitalization
policy.  

Trustee Tulloch, do you want to get back
to me with a date that that should be included on
our long range calendar?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Let's shoot for March
13th.  We're having problems all the CIC committee
members available on the same date.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  That's fine.
Then to segue, as we were taking about, we

have penciled in a town hall on March 27.  The
Chateau is available, and I believe our District
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Clerk was checking to see if the IT staff had time
to set that up at The Chateau.

We can have it as an open forum, we can
pick a topic, but we had talked about wanting to do
this once a quarter, so we slated it in on our
March 27th.  

I'll work with anyone if you want to just
open it up like we did the last time with questions
that the public can ask and answer.  It seemed like
that was a good approach.  Or we could specifically
say we'd like to hear community input on or our
five-year capital plan.  

What would we like to do?
TRUSTEE DENT:  I like the idea of the

community asking questions.  I think one thing,
maybe a takeaway from the last, we didn't get
through them all because people were showing up with
50 notecards that were all questions.  So maybe
limit the amount of questions per person or
something.  That way, we can actually get real
questions from folks and not a hundred questions
from one person.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And I believe -- it's a
good suggestion.  And I believe last time we had
Kevin Lyons and Kristin Miller as moderators.  Would
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Kristin be available to be a moderator at that
event?

MR. BANDELIN:  I'll report back on that
now that we have a confirmed, approved --

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I thought she did a great
job.  And I think that I don't want get into a
situation like we had last time where we had all
these unanswered questions.  If there's a way that
we can try to limit how many questions, like you
suggested, I think that's a good attempt at least.  

Any other thoughts or comments on the town
hall?  We will solicit the community to ask
questions, and hopefully we can do it in a format
like last time.  That was very nicely done.

Any other comments on the long range
calendar?

Seeing none, we will move on.  
J.  BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE 

TRUSTEE DENT:  I can report back to the
Board, but working through any survey questions you
may have or ideas for surveys, feel free to reach
out.  Been in contact with Mr. Lyons regarding a
couple items, and don't have a finalized response
yet.  

I'll report back on that.  One has to do
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with the inquiry regarding the template and working
with us on the template training, which we did do in
a previous training, but working through a little
bit of clarity on that or, potentially, observation
by Mr. Lyons on what we put in our board packet at
the last meeting, because I think that was the
format we wanted to go.  I forget which item it was.  

Then the other was we're working -- and
I'll work the clerk on this -- fulfilling a part of
our contract with Government Sciences from
last year, and that was the community training,
community outreach.  We're working on trying to
figure out a few dates that work with Mr. Lyons.
And I'll loop in Heidi on that, because I know Heidi
has reached on both those fronts.  

I'll have a update at the next meeting.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I have a question for you:

Would it be something to consider to potentially,
depending on how long this community outreach
training lasts, if it's 15 or 20 minutes, would that
be worthwhile to incorporate into our town hall?

TRUSTEE DENT:  Yeah, and it's -- I think
one thing we didn't talk about tonight is how long
do we want the town hall to be?  And I think it's
important to have the community members that have
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questions to be heard, rather than making them go to
school.  

I think it is very important and it could
kill two birds with one stone, so we can look into
that.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  My suggestion on the time
is that we would go from 6:00 until 9:00.  And I
don't recall what timeline we gave last time.
Two hours, so it was shorter than that.

Does anyone have a strong feeling one way
or another?  Is 6:00 to 9:00 too long?

TRUSTEE DENT:  And a lot of that depends
on public comment too, right?  I think we shortened
the public comment for everybody, just so we could
get to questions, and then we had hundreds of
questions we didn't get to.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All right.  We'll do 6:00
to 8:00, and we'll have condensed public comment.

I have a couple.  It was really
interesting -- this is related to pickleball.  The
pickleball sort of self-appointed committee is
working so hard.  And they actually did a
competitive analysis and produced it for the entire
committee.  And they actually discovered that some
of the courts in the Tahoe Basin are able to offer
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free play because their tournaments generate so much
revenue that it covers the costs of operating their
pickleball centers.  

And they do these tournaments off peak,
and the pickleball community is very interested in
tournaments because it's an opportunity to entice
outside play and to play with players they don't
play with on a daily basis.  

So I think that when we're looking at
budgeting and we're looking at our venues, we really
should think about outside tournaments and how much
would that help to fund our venues and, potentially,
lower rates for our locals.  I thought that was
really interesting.

And I wanted to just also update as it
relates to contracts.  General counsel reviewed the
contract that was used for a charitable event up at
Diamond Peak last week and noted that there were
some deficiencies in the language of the contract.
He's working with staff to update the language and
ensure that the District is properly and legally
protected.  So, things with contracts continue to
evolve.

The last thing I just want to point out is
that for the committee leaders, such as Trustee
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Tonking, Trustee Tulloch, it has been requested by
our clerk that you inform staff at least a week
before the meeting if they are to be providing
materials for your meeting so that they have
adequate time to prepare whatever it is that you're
needing for your meetings.  

Just a reminder, you know, not to leave it
until the three-day window of an agenda going out,
but to be a bit proactive and let staff know if you
have needs for them produce something for the
meeting.  Does that make sense?

Great.  If there's no other comments
relative to Board of Trustees updates, we will go to
final public comments.  
K.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 

MS. JEZYCKI:  Good evening.  My name is
Michelle Jezycki.  I am a local here, full time.

I'm also a product of Incline schools,
grew up here.  I also have 30 years of human
resources experience, and hearing the dialogue this
evening about the GM and the contracting drafted, I
would just ask for great consideration of some of
the comments that were made tonight.

I think there are similar skill sets, but
also varying skill sets that I think it's fair, not
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only to a candidate, not to just Mr. Magee, but I'm
talking about other positions that I've been
involved with in terms of executive searches and so
forth, to look through both lenses, the lense of
what's best for the person who is willing to take on
a challenge like this, as well as what's best for
the community.  

I do think the challenge of being here
50 percent poses a very unique concern.

Growing up here, I always heard Incline
was so unique, even though we went to "income high
school," people called us as we went to different
towns across the state.  But coming back as an
adult, I see how unique Incline is.

I would just ask that you give great
consideration on behalf Mr. Magee as well the
community in making that decision in drawing up the
terms of a draft contract.  

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Are there any public

comments here in the room?  Seeing none, we will
move to online.

MR. DOBLER:  Cliff Dobler, 995 Fairway.
I brought to your attention tonight that

the contract between the Forest Service and IVGID
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regarding half of the land that Diamond Peak rests
on is on a ground lease or a special use permit with
the Forest Service.  And that has been -- it expired
in December.  I assume now been it's done, but
Mr. Bandelin's statement that there's no board
policy to have the Board review that contract, which
is the ten-year contract and provides for lease
rentals of somewhere between 25- and 35-, 40,000
a year would certainly exceed the $100,000 where
it's required to bring that contract to the Board.

Now, when you have a ten-year-old lease
and it's being updated after ten years, the odds are
that there may be language changes within that
contract, and yet five members of this Board doesn't
even seem to be aware of it.  And I doubt seriously
if our lawyers even looked at the contract.  

So, the idea of just saying, well, we
don't have a board policy, I don't know what the
heck he's even talking about, Mr. Bandelin.  I mean
at $30,000 a year for ten years, that's 300 grand.
And I would think -- I'm certainly interested in
knowing what changes might have been made to that
original lease -- special use permit contract to
know what we're getting ourselves into over the next
ten years.  
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This is too big of a deal just to brush

aside.  It's half of the land at Diamond Peak.
Half.  Okay?  And to think this a will be slid under
the table without any review by the Board makes
absolutely to sense to me, and is one of the
problems that you have at IVGID is everything is
under cover and has to be pried away from the
management to be able to get it to the Board so they
can make appropriate decisions.

I would like to see this brought to the
Board and reviewed to see if any contract changes
were made and what new rental rates may be.  And I
would appreciate it.  

Thank you very much.
MR. KATZ:  Hello.  This is Aaron Katz.
There was previous public comment, I think

by Mrs. Johnson, stating what the purpose allegedly
was of IVGID and how we should adhere to what the
purposes were and nothing more.  And then she
recited it was water, sewer, and recreation.  Well,
I hope she's listening.  She's wrong.

When IVGID was formed, no GID had the
power to furnish facilities for recreation, so that
was not part of our original charter.  And what
happened here is Crystal Bay Development chose to
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charge homeowners for the beach facilities, rather
than provide them with a homeowner's association,
they represented to all purchasers they were going
to do.  

Crystal Bay lobbied the legislature to
have this new basic power possible for GIDs, and
they were successful because they were represented
by Mr. McDonald of McDonald Carano.  

Then IVGID petitioned the board, County
Board, to secure that new power.  And we had a
public hearing, this is after formation.  At the
public hearing, IVGID board members represented to
the County Board that no facilities would be
acquired with this power except for the beaches.
That the beaches would be paid for with ad valorem
taxes, no rec fee, and that every other recreational
facility would be privately owned, operated, and
funded.  This is or history.  If we adhere to this
history, we get out of the golf, ski, tennis,
facilities rental, Rec Center, food and beverage,
marketing, magazine publishing business.  That's
what you should do.  And guess what?  You'll find
that we don't lose money anymore.  

Now, on my public record request, what
Heidi told you is not accurate.  I asked for A and
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staff responded with B.  In other words, they didn't
comply.  I gave a detailed timeline in my email to
the Board, it's all there.  All you need to look.  

Bottom line, I had not gotten the records
I asked for.  I have not changed the request.  It's
concealment, they're making excuses up.  I want the
records.  I am going to file tomorrow unless
somebody tells me before I'm getting them.  

Thank you.
MATT:  That was our last public comment on

Zoom.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  We have one

additional public comment in the room.
MR. SCHULTZ:  Good evening.  Joe Schultz,

Putter Court.
With regards to the town hall meeting, it

was so well attended last, and despite the fact that
there was an overwhelming number questions, it
should seem obvious to everybody that the community
is very interested in being able to ask questions
and get a response.

So in light of that, I would like to
encourage you to think of a longer timeframe than
two hours.  I understand it's a burden on your time,
and we do appreciate all the time you spend here.
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And congratulations on a good meeting, despite the
fact that some negativity was expressed during the
first three minutes of talk, it was a very good
meeting.

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That's the end of public

comment.  
L.  ADJOURNMENT 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We will adjourn at 8:17.
Thank you all.

(Meeting ended at 8:17 p.m.)
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STATE OF NEVADA ) 

)  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 

 
I, BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH, do hereby 

certify: 
That I was present on February 14, 2024, 

at the Board of Trustees meeting, via Zoom, and took 
stenotype notes of the proceedings entitled herein, 
and thereafter transcribed the same into typewriting 
as herein appears. 

That the foregoing transcript is a full, 
true, and correct transcription of my stenotype 
notes of said proceedings consisting of pages 94, 
inclusive. 

DATED:  At Reno, Nevada, this day of 18th 
day of February, 2024. 
 

    /s/ Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
 

 
___________________________ 
BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH 
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INVOICE
BAVS SM-LLC

brandiavsmith@gmail.com
United States

BILL TO
Incline Village General Improvement
District
Susan Herron / Heidi White

775-832-1218
AP@ivgid.org

Invoice Number: IVGID 23

Invoice Date: February 18, 2024

Payment Due: March 14, 2024

Amount Due (USD): $914.00

Items Quantity Price Amount

Base fee
February 14, 2024 BOT meeting

1 $350.00 $350.00

Per page fee
February 14, 2024 BOT meeting

94 $6.00 $564.00

Subtotal: $914.00

Total: $914.00

Amount Due (USD): $914.00

Page 118 of 297



Page 119 of 297



Page 120 of 297



Page 121 of 297



Page 122 of 297



Page 123 of 297



Page 124 of 297



Page 125 of 297



Page 126 of 297



Page 127 of 297



Page 128 of 297



Page 129 of 297



Page 130 of 297



Page 131 of 297



Page 132 of 297



Page 133 of 297



Page 134 of 297



Page 135 of 297



Page 136 of 297



Page 137 of 297



Page 138 of 297



Page 139 of 297



Page 140 of 297



Page 141 of 297



Page 142 of 297



Page 143 of 297



Page 144 of 297



Page 145 of 297



Page 146 of 297



Page 147 of 297



Page 148 of 297



Page 149 of 297



Page 150 of 297



Page 151 of 297



Page 152 of 297



Page 153 of 297



Page 154 of 297



Page 155 of 297



Page 156 of 297



Page 157 of 297



Page 158 of 297



Page 159 of 297



Page 160 of 297



Page 161 of 297



Page 162 of 297



Page 163 of 297



Page 164 of 297



Page 165 of 297



Page 166 of 297



Page 167 of 297



Page 168 of 297



Page 169 of 297



Page 170 of 297



Page 171 of 297



Page 172 of 297



Page 173 of 297



Page 174 of 297



Page 175 of 297



Page 176 of 297



Page 177 of 297




